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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited (“the Company™), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred
to as “ financial statement”™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial
Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and total comprehensive income (comprising of profit
and other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it became available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the ‘Other information’, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those charged with the governance and take appropriate actions, if required.

The Annual Report / Director report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management and Those charged with Governance for Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, cash

flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statement, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting framework.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(1) of the Act, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) we are responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.




e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable
that the economic decisions of the users of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality
and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration during the year. Hence, reporting as specified in section
197(16) of the Companies Actis not applicable.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) order, 2020 (“the order™), issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of the sub section (11) of the section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure-A”, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

3. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purposes of our audit of the accompanying financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of changes in equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act.

() On the basis of the written representations received from the and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors
is disqualified as on March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as on
March 31, 2024, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have
expressed an unmodified opinion.

spect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit
qrs) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:



i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations (if any) on its financial position as at March 31, 2024.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which they were any material
foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

iv. (2) The management of the Company has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advances or loaned or invested (either from the borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or any kinds of funds)
by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The management of the Company has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received
by the Company in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”™), with the understanding,
that Company had recorded in writing or otherwise, the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances nothing has come to
the notice that has occurred them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement

v. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the FY 23-24 and therefore the compliance of the provisions of
section 123 of the Act are not applicable.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books
of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the
same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory requirements for
record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024




Annexure A referred to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Ecolife Green One Mobility
Private Limited, on the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024:

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and records
examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

(1) a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of Property, Plants and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not own any intangible assets. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i)(2)(B) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

b) The Property, Plants and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

¢) The Company does not hold any immovable property (in the nature of 'property, plantand equipment’). Accordingly, the paragraph
3 (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets or both during the year.

€) As per the information and explanations provided to us by the management, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending
against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)
and rules made thereunder, therefore reporting under clause 3(i)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(i) (a)The Company does not hold any inventory, therefore reporting under clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(b) During any point of time of the year ended March 31, 2024, the company has not been sanctioned working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets,

| therefore, reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us during the course of audit, the company has not made investments
in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties, therefore reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us during the course of audit, the company has not granted any loans,
has not made any investments, and has not given any guarantees, and security, therefore reporting under clause 3(iv) of the

Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) ln our qplmon, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or
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(vi) The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the
services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(vii) (a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the books of account and
records, the Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees
state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax and other
statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there were no outstanding at March 31, 2024, for a period of more than six
months from the date they become payable.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) which have
not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to information and explanations given to us, there are no instances of any transaction not being recorded in the
books of account that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year ended March 31, 2024, in the tax assessment
under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us and representation received from the management of  the Company,
the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for
which the loans were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us, and on an overall examination
of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint
ventures, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, or joint
ventures, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (2)The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments), during the year ended March 31, 2024. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has made preferential
allotment/private placement of preference shares (optionally convertible) during the year and the requirements of
section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with, further, the funds raised have been
used for the purposes for which the funds were raised,

(xi)
a) During the course of examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, no instances of fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year ended March 31, 2024

b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors Form ADT-4, as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

¢) According to the information and explanation given to us including the representations made to us by the
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the
ar ended March 31, 2024.




(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable on it. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by the
Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details of such related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
24, Related Party Disclosures specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed
under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to have an internal audit system
under section 138 of the Act and consequently, does not have an internal audit system. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered during the yearended March
31, 2024, into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.
Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly,
clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of
India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly. the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable. ‘

(xvii) The company has not incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year and in the current financial
year.

(xviii) There has not been any resignation of Statutory Auditor during the year ended March 31, 2024. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company
as and when they fall due.




(xx) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of
Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project other than ongoing projects. Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order
is not applicable.

(b) there is no unspent amount under sub-section (6) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing project.
Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(xxi)This report is in relation to the standalone financial statements. This clause (xxi) is for consolidated financial
statements; hence, it is not applicable.

for K G Somani & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants :
Firm’s Registration No.: 006591N/N500377

Amber Jaiswal
Membership No.: 550715
UDIN: 24550715BKCYRK?2088

Place: New Delhi
Date: 15t May ,2024



Annexure B referred to in Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) to the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited, on
the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024:

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited (‘the Company’)
as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAD’). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to
the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under
the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note®) issued by the ICAIL Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that:
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i.pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company;
ii.provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
iii.provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

for K G Somani & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 006591N/N500377

Amber Jaiswal
Membership No.: 550715
UDIN: 24550715BKCYRK?2088

Place: New Delhi
Date: 13" May ,2024
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Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2021PTC381138
Balance sheet as at 31 March 2024
{All amounts in ¥ Lakh unless stated otherwise)}

As at As at
Note No. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 20,757.92 22,589.43
Capitlal work-in-progress 6 7.47 -
Financial assets
i. Other financial assets 7 5,210.84 2,227.38
25,976.23 24,816.81
Current assets
Financial assets
i. Trade receivables 8 1,789.28 6,157.18
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 9 468.90 7.93
iii. Other financial assets 10 29.57 7.50
Other current assets 11 4,976.78 9,231.07
7,264.53 15,403.68
Total assets 33,240.76 40,220.49
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 12 1,010.00 1,010.00
Other equity 13 2493.60 (137.89)
3503.60 872.11
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 14 A 17,216.33 -
Provisions 15A 35.56 4.72
Deferred tax liabilities {net) 16 970.43 82.93
Other non-current liabilities 17 1,563.62 -
19,785.94 87.65
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 14 B 2,400.00 2,762.14
ii. Trade payables 18
a. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 5.15 66.08
b. total outstgndmg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 563.91 1,480.44
small enterprises
iii. Other financial liabilities 19 6,717.20 34,503.23
Provisions 15B 201.40 199.50
Other current liabilities 20 63.56 249.35
9,951.22 39,260.73
Total equity and labilities 33,240.76 40,220.49
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
For K G Somani & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited
Firm Registration Ng,: 1N/N500377
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Partner Director Director
M. No. 550715 . DIN : 08663129 DIN : 08670417
Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi

Place : New Delhi
Date : 01 May 2024 Chief Financial Officer
Place : New Delhi
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Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2021PTC381138
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in ¥ Lakh unless stated otherwise)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note No. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 21 10,442.45 6,366.79
Other income 22 166.19 25.40
I Total income 10,608.64 6,392.19
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 23 2,474.36 1,463.68
Finance costs 24 2,174.37 1,774.84
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 2,329.13 1,457.41
Other expenses 26 2,565.31 1,750.46
II Total expenses 9,5643.17 6,446.39
1II Profit/(loss) before tax (I-II) 1,065.47 {54.20)
IV Tax expense 27 270.00 83.10
Current tax - -
Deferred tax 270.00 83.10
V Profit/(loss) after tax for the year (III-IV) 795.47 {137.30)
VI Other comprehensive income 28 0.16 -
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
i. Gains on defined benefits plans 0.21 -
ii. Income tax on gain on defined benefit plan (0.05) -
VI Total comprehensive income for the year (V+VI) 795.63 (137.30)
Earnings per share (face value ¥ 10 per share) 29
Basic (3) 7.88 (4.41)
Diluted (%) 7.88 (4.41)
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached.
For K G Somani & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited
Firm Registration No.: 006591N/N500377
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Date : 01 May 2024 Chief Financial Officer

Place : New Delhi




CIN: U63030DL2021PTC381138
Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in % Lakh unless stated otherwise}

A. Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustment for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Interest on liability component of preference shares
Finance costs
Interest income
Operating profit before working capital changes

Changes in working capital

Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables

(Increase) in other financial assets - current and non-current
{Increase)/decrease in other current assets
(Decrease}/increase in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities

Increase in other current and non-current liabilities
Increase in provisions

Cash flows generated from operations

Less : Direct taxes paid {net of refunds)

Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities (A}

B. Cash flows from investing activities:
Payment for purchase of property, plant and equipment ({including capital
work in progress)
Interest received
Investments in fixed deposits (net)
Proceeds from capital subsidy
Net cash used in investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issue of equity share
Proceeds from issue of preference share
Proceeds from non-current borrowings
Proceeds from inter corporate loan
Repayment of inter corporate loan
Interest income
Finance costs paid
Net cash flows from financing activities (C)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 9)

Notes:

[

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached.

For K G Somani & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.:

Amber Jaiswal
Partner

Place : New Delhi
Date : 01 May 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2024
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Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited

For the year ended
31 March 2023

The above statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7, "Statement of cash flows".
Refer note no.39 for reconciliation of financial liabilities arising from financing activities as per amendment to Ind-AS 7: Statement of Cash Flows.

1,065.47 {54.20)
2,329.13 1,457.41
215.04 -
1,959.33 1,774.85

(156.29) {25.40)
5,412.68 3,152.66
4,367.90 6,157.18)
{1,593.08) (14.90)

(140.65) 327.45

(977.46) 3,414.87

21.08 (2,057.54)
1,377.83 248.63
32.96 204.21
8,501.26 (881.80)
(5.05) (289.96)
8,496.21 (1,171.76)
(28,675.22) {2,598.12)
38.35 -
(1,294.52) (2,212.48)
4,400.00 2,200.00
{25,531.39) {2,610.60)
- 1,000.00
4,925.00 -
16,929.60 B
- 2,762.14
(2,762.14) -
- 17.90
{1,596.31) -
17,496.15 3,780.04
460.97 (2.32)
7.93 10.25
468.90 7.93
For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited
—

b

Erishan K Gupta

Director
DIN : 08663129
Place : New Delhi

Shatrughan Gpswami
Chief Financial Officer

Place : New Delhi

Sharad Gupta
Director

DIN : 08670417
Place : New Delhi
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Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2021PTC381138

Statement of changes in equity for the period ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in % Lakh unless stated otherwise)

A. Equity share capital
(i)} Current reporting period

Changes due to prior | Restated balance as at | Changes during the | As at 31 March
period errors 01 April 2023 year 2024
Equity share capital 1,010.00 - 1,010.00 - 1,010.00

Particular As at 01 April 2023

(ii} Previous reporting period

Changes due to prior | Restated balance as at | Changes during the | As at 31 March
period errors 01 April 2022 year 2023

Equity share capital 10.00 - 10.00 1,000.00 1,010.00

Particular As at 01 April 2022

B. Other equity

Equity component of

Particular compound financial Retained earnings Total
instruments
Balance as at 01 April 2022 - {0.60) {0.60)
Loss for the year - (137.30) (137.30}
Balance as at 31 March 2023 - {137.89) {137.89)
Profit for the year - 795.63 795.63
Equity component of 6% non-cumulative preference share transferred during the year 2,453.31 ~ 2,453.31
Deferred tax liabilities on equity component of financial instruments (617.45) - (617.45)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1,835.86 657.74 2,493.60

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date attached

For K G Somani & Co LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited
Firm Registration No.i 006591N/N500377

D 5 G

M),n/en

Amber Jai: \ \i Erishan Ki Gupta Sharad Gupta

Partner ;L ) Director Director

M. No. 550715 ‘::-,‘:?f DIN : 08663129 DIN : 08670417
¥ Place : New Delhi Place : New Delhi

Place : New Delhi Shatrughag Goswami

Date : 01 May 2024 Chief Finankcial Officer

Place : New Delhi
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CIN: U63030DL2021PTC381138
Notes to financijal statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts in ¥ Lakh unless stated otherwise)

i

2.1

2.2

General information

Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited ({the “Company”) is a private limited Company incorporated on 14th May 2021 under the Companies
Act, 2013 having its registered office at 601, Hemkunt Chambers, 89, Nehru Place, New Delhi {South Delhi), 110019 India. The principal
activities of the Company are owning, operating and maintaining electric vehicles commercially and managing depots thereof.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorize for issue on 01 May 2024.

Basis of preparation and presentation

Compliance with Indian Accounting Standards ["Ind AS")

The Financial Statements have been prepared as a going coneern in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,as amended,
presentation requirement as per Division II of the schedule [Il of the Act and eother relevant provisions of the Act.

Historical cost convention

These standalone financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments and defined benefit
plans which are measured at fair value or amortised cost at the end of each reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle. Based on the nature of
services rendered to customers and time elapsed between deployment of resources and the realisation in cash and cash equivalents of the
consideration for such services rendered, the Company has considered an operating cycle of 12 months.

The statement of cash flows has been prepared under indirect method, whereby profit or loss before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of income or
expense associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated. The Company considers all highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value to be cash equivalents.

These standalone financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee (3} which is the functional currency of the Company. All amounts
disclosed in the financial statements and the accompanying notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of
Schedule III {Division II} of the Companies Act 2013, unless otherwise stated.

New and amended standards adopted by the Company
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated 31 March 2023 notified the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2023, which amended certain accounting standards (see below), and were effective from 1 April 2023:

Ind AS 1 - Discl e of ting policies -The amendment requires entities to disclose their material rather than their significant
accounting policies. These amendments define what is ‘material accounting policy information’ and explain how to identify when accounting
policy information is material. They further clarify that immaterial accounting policy information does not need to be disclosed. If it is disclosed,
it should not obscure material accounting information.

Ind AS 8 - Definition of ting esti -The amendment clarifies how entities should distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The distinction is important, because changes in accounting estimates are applied prospectively to future
transactions and other future events, whereas changes in accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively to past transactions and
other past events (as well as the current period).

Ind AS 12 - Deferred tax related to assets and Labilities arising from a single transaction -The amendment requires entities to recognise
deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal amounts of taxable and deductible temparary differences. These
should be recognised at the beginning of the earliest comparative period for all deductible and taxable temporary differences associated with
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities, and the corresponding amounts recognised as
part of the cost of the related assets.

The cumulative effect of recognising these adjustments is recognised in the opening balance of retained earnings, or another component of
equity, as appropriate.

These amendments did not have any material impact on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods. As at 31 March 2024, there are no amendments to the accounting standards that are notified and are applicable from
01 April 2024.

Use of estimates and judgements and accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the period presented.
Actual results may differ from the estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimates are revised and future periods affected.

The Company uses the following critical accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions in preparation of its financial statements.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2021PTC381138
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in ¥ Lakh unless stated otherwise)

4.1

4.3

4.4

4.5

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Lability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable,

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Balance Sheet on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of
assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial recognition

Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are stated at cost of acquisition, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. The cost of tangible asset includes purchase cost (net of rebates, subsidy and discounts) including non-refundable taxes, and anv directly
attributable costs on making the asset ready for its intended use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized
as a separate assct, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized
when replaced.

Interest cost incurred on qualifying asset is capitalized up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use, based on borrowings incurred
specifically for financing the asset or the weighted average rate of all other borrowings if no specific borrowings have been incurred for the asset.

Subsequent {Depreciation, esti 1 useful lives and residual value)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method on a pro-rata basis from the date on which each asset is ready to use to allocate their
cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives of the assets as prescribed in Schedule I1 of the companies Act, 2013 except
in respect of the following assets where estimated useful life is determined as per management’s estimate based on technical advice considering
the nature of assets, the usage of asset, expected physical wear & tear:

[Property. plant and equipment Useful lives based on technical evaluation
Commercial Vehicle (Bus) = 12 Years
Plant & Equipment 12 Years

The assets’ residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

De-recognition

An item of Property, plant and equipments or any significant part intially recongnised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gains and losses arising on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with
carrying amount and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when such asset is de-recognised.

Capital work-in-progress
Projects under which the property, plant and equipment is not yet ready for their intended use are carried as. capital work-in-progress at cost,
net of accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost less provision for impairment, if any.

Cash and cash equivalents
In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, cheques and balances with bank and short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amount of cash.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2021PTC381138

Notes

to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts in % Lakh unless stated otherwise)

4.6

4.8

4.9
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Financial instruments

Initial recognition

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial instruments (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.
Subsequently, financial instruments are measured according to the category in which they are classified.

Subseguent measurement

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost using the effective interest method or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Classification of financial assets depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

- those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at amortised cost unless the asset is designated at fair value through
profit or loss under the fair value option:

- Business model test: The objective of the Company's business model is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows.

- Cash flow characteristic test: The contractual term of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset which is not classified in above category are subseqently measured at fair value throught profit and loss.

Derecagnition of financial assets
A financial asset is derecognised only when:

- The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

- Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to
one or more recipients

- The right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired.
Financial liabilities
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all derivative financial liabilities are measured at fair value through profit or loss and all non-derivative
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Derecognition

A financial liability de-rccognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the of the original liability and the recognition of a new lability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance Sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultanesusly. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL) model to the following:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost

- financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Expected credit loss are measured through a loss allowance at an amount equal to :

- the twelve month expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial instruments that are
possible within twelve months after the reporting date); or —

- full life time expected credit losses {expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the life of the financial instrument).

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 115, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Equity, reserves and dividend payments

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds. Retained eamings include the current and prior period retained profits/{loss). All transactions with the owners of the
Company are recorded separately within equity.

Preference shares

The company has issued redemable preference shares that are classified as compound financial instruments basis the terms and conditions of
the agreemenet and the criteria defined as per "Ind AS -32 : Financial instruments : Presentation”. The liability component of the instruments
are measured at fair value through profit and loss at the end of each reporting period.
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Ecolife Green One|Mobility Private Limited
CIN: U63030DL2021PTC381138

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in ¥ Lakh unless stated otherwise)

4.10

4.11

4.12

4.13

4.14

4.15

4.16

Government grants & subsidies

Government grants are recognised only when there is a reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attached to
them and the grants will be received.

Government grants relating to income are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises
the expenses, the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. Grant relating to assets are netted off against the acquisition
cost of the asset. In case of a government grants relating to non-monetary asset, received for the use of the Company, both grant and asset are
accounted forat a nominal value.

Taxation
Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the ones recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax

Current tax is determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year and is computed in accordance with relevant tax
regulations. Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity).

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised in full for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that the underlying tax loss or deductible temporary difference will be utilised against future taxable income, This is assessed
based on the Company's forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits on
the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits wili allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws} that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items
recognised outslde statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit and loss {either in other comprehensive income or in
equity).

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods or services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial period which are
unpaid.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, if any. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs] and the redemption amount is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The differerice
between the carying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in S 1t of Profit and Loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as 2 result of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made, provisions required to settle are reviewed
regularly and are adjusted where necessary to reflect the current best estimates of the obligation. Provisions are discounted to their present
values, where the time value of money is material.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue excludes indirect taxes, if any
since these are collected on behalf of the government. The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue and its related cost can be
reliably measured and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Company’s activities as described below:

{a) Sale of services

Revenue from services are recognized as related services are performed. The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue
over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

a. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company’s performance as the Company performs;

b. The Company’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

c. The Company’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Company and an entity has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligations where one of the above conditiors are not met, revenue is recognised at the point in time at which the performance
obligation is satisfied.

{b) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. For all Financial instruments measured either at amortized or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). Interest income is included in other income in the Statement of Profit
and Loss. Interest income in respect of financial instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss is included in other income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial peried of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale,

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss in the year in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest, which is computed as per effective interest method, and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds.




JBMi®

o et ate st

Ecolife Green One Mobility Private Limited

CIN: U63030DL2021PTC381138
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts in ¢ Lakh unless stated atherwise)

4.17

4.18

4.19

-— 4.20

Employee benefits

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled within the operating cycle after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related services are recognised in the period in which the related services are rendered and are
measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

Liabilities for leave encashment and compensated absences which are not expected to be settled wholly within the operating cycle after the end
of the period in which the employees render the related service are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows which is
expected to be paid using the projected unit credit method by an independent actuary where the employee cost is significant. The benefits are
discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period on Government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation. Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in profit or
loss.

Post-employment obligations
Defined benefit plans
The Company has defined benefit plans namely gratuity for employees.

The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end
of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an independent actuary using
the projected unit credit method where the employee cost is significant.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields
at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan
assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in profit or loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the peried in
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of changes in equity and in
the Balance Sheet. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined contribution plans

The Company has defined contribution plans for post retirements benefits, namely, Employee Provident Fund Scheme administered through
Provident Fund Commissioner. The Company’s contribution is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The Company’s contribution to State Plans namely Employees’ State Insurance Fund Scheme, Employees’ Pension Scheme and Labour welfare
fund are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss every year.

Termination Benefits
A liability for the termination benefit is recognised when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit.

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not whally within the control of the Company or a present obligation
that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the
amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets

Contingent asset being a possible asset that arises from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company, is not recognized but disclosed in the financial
statements.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings pér share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares, except
where the result is anti-dilutive.

Significant ting jud ts, estimates and assumptions —

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities,
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of
assets or liabilities affected in future periods. The Company continually evaluates these estimates and assumptions based on most recently
available information. Revision to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively in the Statement of Profit and Lass in the period in which
the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has
made the following judgments, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared, Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the contral of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.,

(i) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model based on level 3 inputs.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in
establishing fair values. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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{ii) Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for trade receivables are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The company uses
Jjudgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation based on the company's past history and other
factors at the end of each reporting period.

(iii) Estimates related to useful life of Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful lives estimated by the management. These
rates are in line with the lives prescribed under Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the certain assets where estimated
useful life is determined as per management’s estimate based on technical advice considering the nature of assets, the usage of asset, expected
physical wear & tear. The management believes that depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual
values of property, plant and equipment.

{iv) Impairment of assets

An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. In calculating the value
in use, certain assumptions are required to be made in respect of highly uncertain matters, including management’s expectations of
growth in EBITDA, long term growth rates; and the selection of discount rates to reflect the risks involved.

{v) Contingent liabilities

The contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company. The Company evaluates the obligation through Probable,
Possible or Remote model (‘PPR). In making the evaluation for PPR, the Company take into consideration the Industry perspective, legal and
technical view, availability of documentation/agreements, interpretation of the matter, independent opinion from professionals [spécific matters)
etc. which can vary based on subsequent events. The Company provides the liability in the books for probable cases, while possible cases are
shown as contingent liability. The remotes cases are not disclosed in the financial statement.

(vi) Taxes

Provision for tax liabilities require judgments on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case law and the potential outcomes of tax
audits and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in
adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in the Statement of Profit or
Loss.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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S Property, plant and equipments
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Office equipment

Particulars Pla.nt and Comrf1erc1al Fussijtuze (including Computer Total

equipment vehicles and fixtures

system)

Gross block
As at 01 April 2022 - - - - -
Additions during the year 2,452.46 21,575.11 4.24 15.03 24,046.84
Deletions during the year - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 2,452.46 21,575.11 4.24 15.03 24,046.84
Additions during the year 520.81 - - = 520.81
Deletions during the year (24.98) - = = (24.98)
As at 31 March 2024 2,948.29 21,575.11 4.24 15.03 24,542.67
Accumulated depreciation
As at 01 April 2022 - - - - -
Charge for the year 148.89 1,307.65 0.12 0.74 1,457.41
As at 31 March 2023 148.89 1,307.65 0.12 0.74 1,457.41
Charge for the year 269.85 2,055.25 0.51 3.52 2,329.13
Deletions during the year (1.79) (1.79)
As at 31 March 2024 416.95 3,362.90 0.63 4.27 3,784.75
Net Block
As at 31 March 2023 2,303.58 20,267.46 4.11 14.28 22,589.43
As at 31 March 2024 2,531.35 18,212.21 3.60 10.76 20,757.92

Refer note 14 - Borrowings for details regarding Property, plant and equipment which are pledged as security for obtaning borrowings.

6 Capital work-in-progress ("CWIP")
Capital work-in-progress

CWIP ageing as at 31 March, 2024

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

7.47

7.47

Project Name Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years Total
year
Capital work-in-progess* 7.47 - - - 7.47
*During the year, no projects have been temporarily suspended.
i. Pre-operative expense pending allocation : -
As at As at
Najres offbzpenge 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance as at beginning of the year - 41.85
Additions during the year:
Interest on borrowings e 346.66
Repairs and maintenance = 1.21
Legal and professional charges = 34.42
Salary and wages - 18.67
Rates and taxes = 10.39
Others - 1.66
Total - 454.86
Less : Expense capitalised during the year = {454.86)

Balance as at end of the year
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7 Other financial assets - non-current
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated}
Fixed deposit with remaining maturity of more than 12 months
Interest accrued on fixed deposit
Other restricted balances with banks
- in current account*
Security deposits

“restricted balance of 21,563.63 Lakh (31 March 2023 : Nil) received as deposit from customer

8 Trade receivables
Considered good, Unsecured

As at
31 March 2024

JBMi®
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As at
31 March 2023

3,507.00 2,212.48
125.32 -
1,563.62 -
14.90 14.90
5,210.84 2,227.38
1,789.28 6,157.18
1,789.28 6,157.18

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or by firms or

private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member.

Refer note 14 - Borrowings for details regarding trade receivables which are pledged as security by the company.

Trade receivables aging as at 31 March 2024

Outstanding far following periods from due of payments

Unbilled
Dues

Particulars Less than 6

months

6 month -
1 year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed trade receivables — considered

172.38 1,616.89 -

1,789.28

{ii) Undisputed trade receivables ~ which have
significant increase in credit risk

(iti} Undisputed trade receivables — credit
impaired

{iv} Disputed trade receivables — considered good o - o

(v) Disputed trade receivables - which have
| significant increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired - - =

Total 172.38 1.616.89 -

1,789.28

Trade receivables aging as at 31 March 2023

Unbilled

Outstanding for following perioc

is from due of payments

Particulars Less than 6

months

6 month -
1 year

Dues

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3
years

Total

(i) Undisputed trade receivables — considered

40.
ek 340.66

1,996.38 3,820.14

6,157.18

{1i) Undisputed trade receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk

(ill) Undisputed trade receivables - credit
impaired

(iv) Disputed trade receivables — considered good = o =

{v) Disputed trade receivables - which have
|significant increase in credit risk

{vi) Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired o o o

Total 340.66

1.996.38 | 3,820.14

6.157.18

9 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand
Balances with banks
- in current account =

10 Other financial assets - current
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Interest accrued on fixed deposits
Insurance claim recoverable

11 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Capital subsidy receivable
TDS/TCS recoverable
Prepaid expenses
Advance to suppliers/others

468.90

== 7.93

468.90

7.93

0.12
29.45

7.50

29.57

7.50

4,400.00
375.01
201.77

8,800.00
369.96
60.72
0.39

4,976.78

9,231.07
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12 Equity share capital
A Authorised:
1,01,00,000 (31 March 2023 : 1,01,00,000) Equity shares of 210 each

]

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
Equity shares of face value 210 each fully paid up

C Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year (Nos.)
Add: issued during the year [Nos.)
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year (Nos.}

D Terms/rights attached to equity shares
i) The Company has one class of equity shares having par value of %10 each.
ii) Each shareholder is entitled for one vote per share held.

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

1,010.00 1,010.00
1,010.00 1,010.00
1,010.00 1,010.00
1,010.00 1,010.00
1,01,00,000 1,00,000
1,00,00,000

1,01,00,000

1,01,00,600

iii) In the event of lquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in

proportion to their shareholding.

E Details of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares in the Company:

Name of shareholder

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

No. of shares

% shareholding

No.of shares

% shareholding

Equity shares of face value 10 each fully paid up
JBM Auto Limited (along with the nominee)
Parminder Singh Chadha

F Equity shares held by the Holding Company in aggregate

Name of shareholder

1,01,00,000

As at 31 March 2024

100.00%

1,00,51,000
- 49,000

99.51%
0.49%

As at 31 March 2023

No. of shares

% shareholding

No.of shares

% shareholding

Equity shares of face value ¥10 each fully paid up
JBM Auto Limited (along with the nominee)

G Equity shares held by promoters:

1,01,00,000

100.00%

1,00,51,000

99.51%

No. of shares

% change during

13 Other equity
A Equity component of compound financial instruments:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Preference share issued during the year

Less: Deferred tax liability on equity component of compound financial instruments

Balance at the end of the year

B Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add : Profit/(loss) for the year
Balance at the end of the year

Total

14 Borrowings
A Non-current borrowings
{Unsecured, Carried at fair value)
Liability component of compound financial instruments

4,92,50,000 (31 March 2023 : Nil) 6% Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares

{Secured, Carried at amortised cost}
Term loan from bank
Less: Current maturities of term loans

The details of N
i} Authorised:
5,00,00,000 (31 March 2023: Nil) Preference shares Z10 each

ii) Issued, subscribed and fully paid up:
6% Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of face value 210 each

iii} Recornciliation of number of preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year (Nos.)
Add: issued during the year (Nos.)
Number of shares outstanding at the end of the year (Nos.)

mulative red ble preference shares are given below:

31 March 2024

Name of promoter As at % of total shares
the year
JBM Auto Limited (along with the nominee) As at 31 March 2024 10100000 100.00% 0.49%
As at 31 March 2023 10051000 99.51% 48.51%
As at 31 March 2022 51000 51.00% o
Parminder Singh Chadha As at 31 March 2024 - - -0.49%
As at 31 March 2023 49000 0.49% -48.51%
As at 31 March 2022 49000 49.00% -
As at As at

31 March 2023

2,453.31
(617.45)

1,835.86

(137.89)
795.63

(0.60)
{137.30)

657.74

{137.89)

2,493.60

(137.89)

2,686.73

16,929.60
(2,400.00)

17,216.33

5,000.0¢

5,000.00

4,925.00

4,925.00

4.92,50.000

4,92,50,000
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iii)

iv}

i}

iii)
iv)
v)
vi)

B

16

The details of preference shares are given below:

{) During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company had issued 4,92,50,000 preference shares of face value ¥10 each fully paid up at par. Preference share carry

Non-cumulative dividend @ 6% p.a.

ii) The preference shares carry voting rights enly as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
iii} The preference shares are redeemable at par at any time but not later than eight (8) years and does not carry any conversion rights.
iv) The preference shares will carry a preferential right vis-a-vis equity shares of the company with respect to the payment of the dividend and repayment of the capital

during winding up.

The details of term loan from Bank is given below:

Term loan of 316,929.60 lakh (31 March 2023- Nil) is secured by first charge on all moveable assets and current assets of the Company, Electric buses and all other
fixed assets, receivables, balance in escrow account, Debt service reserve account, Major maintenance reserve account, Corporate guarantee from JBM Auto Limited.

The repayment profile of the term loan from bank is as set out below:

Frequency of

Outstanding

Number of

Description of loan As at installments Rate of interest (%)
payments amount outstanding
Loan from State Bank of India 31 March 2024 Monthly 16,929.60 75 6M MCLR + 0.60%
31 March 2023 Nil Nil - Not applicable
The interest rate ranges from 9.00% to 9.05% during the year.
There have been no breach of covenants mentioned in the loan agreements during the year.
There have been no default in servicing of loan as at end of the year.
The term loan has been used for the specific purpose for which such loan was obtained.
Current borrowings
{Secured, Carried at amortised cost)
Current maturities of non-current borrowings (refer note 144A) 2,400.00 °
{Unsecured, Carried at amortised cost}
From related parties - 2762.14
2,400.00 2,762.14
Provisions
Non-current
Provision for employee benefits 35.56 4.72
35.56 4.72
Current
Provision for employee benefits 1.97 0.07
Provision for liquidate damages 199.42 199.42
201.40 199.50
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Deferred tax labilities* arising on account of:
Difference between depreciation as per income tax and depreciation and 2,539.26 1,612.48
amortisation as per books
Unabsorbed depreciation under Income Tax Act, 1961 (2,118.82) {1,534.53)
Disallowance under Section 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 (13.34) 4.98
Compound financial instruments (net) 563.33 -
Net Deferred tax liabilities 970.43 82.93
*Deferred tax liability and asset has been offset as they relate to the same government taxation laws.
Movement in deferred tax balances
a 5 Recognised in Recognised in
. 69 at‘ R cgERizedin stategment of o%.her As at
Particulars 01 April statement of . a h 31 March 2024
2023 profit and loss A w cum.y N
equity income
Differetncc. between depreciation as per income tax and depreciation and 1,612.48 926.78 _ B 2,539.26
amortisation as per books
Unabsorbed depreciation under Income Tax Act, 1961 (1,534.53) (584.29) - - (2,118.82)
Disallowance under Section 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 4.98 (18.37) - 0.05 (13.34)
Compound financial instruments (net} = {54.12) 617.45 - 563.33
Net deferred tax liabilities . 82.93 270.00 617.45 .0.05 970.43
= Recognised in  Recognised in
_ 4] at. Recognised in statement of other As at
Particulars OLyapgil SfEemam clf changes in comprehensive 31 March 2023
2022 profit and loss A F
equity income
Differgncev between depreciation as per income tax and depreciation and B 1,612.48 . B 1,612.48
amortisation as per books
Unabsorbed depreciation under Income Tax Act, 1961 (0.17) (1,534.36) - - (1,534.53}
Disallowance under Section 43B of Income Tax Act, 1961 - 4.98 - - 4.98
Net deferred tax liabilities {0.17) 83.10 - - 82.93
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17 Other non-current liabilities
Security deposit*

*received from the customer as per the conditions of the Agreement

18 Trade payables*

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

Asat

31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

1,563.62 5
1,563.62 5
5.15 66.08
563.91 1,480.44
569.06 1,546.52

“Information as required to be furnished as per Section 22 of the Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31

March 2024 is given below:

Particulars:

accounting year
-Principal amount
-Interest

- Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each

. The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

iii. The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have been paid
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED

Act 2006.

iv. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year
v. The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

5.15

66.08

This information has been complied in respect of parties to the extent they could be identified as micro, small and medium enterprises on the basis of information
available with the management as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

Trade payables aging as at 31 March 2024

Unbilled

OQutstanding for following

periods from due date of payment

fencicnlars Dues < 1 Years 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years GrandyTotal

(i MSME - 5.15 - - - 5.15

(i) Others 348.60 215.30 = 563.90

iii} Disputed dues -MSME - - - - - =

(iv} Disputed dues — Others - - - - - =

Total 348.60 220.45 - - - 569.05

Trade payables aging as at 31 March 2023

Particulars Unbilled Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Grand Total

Dues < 1 Years 1-2 years 2-3 years > 3 years

(il MSME - 66.08 - - 66.08

(ii} Others 523.02 915.22 42.20 - - 1,480.44

iii) Disputed dues -MSME - - - - - -

{iv] Disputed dues — Others - - - - - S

Total 523.02 981.30 42.20 - - 1.546.52

19 Other financial liabilities - current

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 37.28

Interest accrued and due on borrowings 2,268.65 1,868.35

Payable for capital goods 4,400.00 32,570.13

Employee related liabilities 48.55 27.47
6,717.20 34,503.23

20 Other current liabilities
Statutory dues payable 63.56 249.35
63.56

Zdntan
Tt

Yo
N0y

249.35
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For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
21 Revenue from operations
Sale of services 10,442.45 6,366.79
10,442.45 6,366.79

Notes:
i. Disaggregation of Revenue: The Company has only one stream of operation i.e. sale of services through owning, operating and maintaining electric
ii. vehicles commercially and managing depots thereof.
ili. The amounts receivables from customers become due after expiry of credit period which on an average is 30 days.
There is no significant financing component in any transaction with the customers.

22 Other income
Interest income on -

fixed deposits with banks carried at amortised cost 156.29 22.20
income-tax refund 9.90 -
Miscellaneous income - 3.20
166.19 25.40
23 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries & wages 2,443.21 1,467.38
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note } 29.14 16.15
Staff welfare expenses 2.01 -
2,474.36 1,483.53
Less: Transferred to project commissioned (refer note 6) - (19.85)
2,474.36 1,463.68
24 Finance costs
Interest on liability component of financial instruments 215.04 -
Interest on term loan* 1,346.37 -
Interest on others 492,92 2,117.37
Bank guarantee Charges & other charges 120.04 4.14
2,174.37 2,121.51
Less: Transferred to project commissioned (refer note 6) = {346.66)
2,174.37 1,774.84
* In relation to financial liabilities carried at amortised cost 1,346.37 =
25 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Depreciation on property, plant and equipments 2,329.13 1,457.41
2,329.13 1,457.41
26 Other expenses
Power & fuel 55.22 14.87
Bank Charges 3.61 0.02
Rates & taxes 48.45 27.45
Parking and passenger charges 436.68
Commercial vehicle repairs 50.86 297.19
Legal & professional expenses 5.48 55.03
AMC expenses 1,538.57 988.06
Liquidated damage expenses 177.24 306.73
Audit Fees 2.86 2.36
Insurance expenses 116.54 7.14
Other administrative expenses 129.80 98.13
2,565.31 1,796.96
Less: Transferred to project commissioned (refer note 6} L - (46.50)
2,565.31 1,750.46
27 Tax expenses
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit and loss:
Current tax - -
Deferred tax 270.00 83.10
270.00 83.10
Income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income:
Current tax - -
Deferred tax 0.05 -

0.05 =
The major component of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expense based on domestic effective rate and the reported tax expense in profit and
loss are as follows:

Profit before tax 1,065.47 {54.20)
Rate of tax (at Country's statutory income tax rate) 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax expense 268.16 (13.64)
Tax effect of amounts which are disallowed in calculating taxable income 1.89 96.74

Tax expenses 270.05 83.10
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For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

28 Other comprehensive income

Gains on defined benefits plans 0.21
Income tax expense on gain on defined benefit plans (0.05)
0.16

29 Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars For the year ended 31 For the year ended
March 2024 31 March 2023
Profit/(loss} for the year attributable to equity shareholders 795.47 (137.30)
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.) 1,01,00,000 31,13,699.00
Nominal value of equity share (3} 10.00 10.00
Basic Earnings per share (%) 7.88 {4.41)
Diluted Earnings per share (%) 7.88 {4.41)

The company did not issued any class of instrument which are convertible into potential equity shares and accordingly, the diluted earnings per share is

same as basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

30 Commitments and contingent liablities

Contingent liabilities:

Pursuant to certain demand received from Delhi transport Corporation (DTC} amounting to 797.69 Lakh with respect to non-conformance with certain
conditions of the concession agreement dated 17 September 2021, the company has represented before the said authority for waiver of said demand. In

the opinion of the management, there will be no outflow of resources with respect to such demand received from DTC.
There are no other contingent labilities except mentioned above.

Commitments:

Particulars ks

31st March, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Bank Guarantees

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

11,000.00

927.55
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31

Financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities

The carrying value and fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost or fair value through Statemet of profit and loss is disclosed below:

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Cash & cash equivalents 468.90 468.90 7.93 7.93
Trade receivables 1,789.28 1,789.28 6,157.18 6,157.18
Other current financial assets 29.57 29.57 7.50 7.50
Total fi ial assets ed at amortised cost 2,287.75 2,287.75 6,172.61 6,172.61
Financial liabilities measured at fair value
Liability component of compound financial instruments 2,686.73 2,686.73 o °
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non current borrowings* 16,929.60 16,929.60 2,762.14 2,762.14
Trade payables 569.06 569.06 1,546.51 1,546.51
Other current financial liabilities 6.717.20 6.717.20 34.503.23 34.503.23
Total financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 24,215.86 24.,215.86 38,811.88 38,811.88

* including current maturities of non- current borrowings.

Carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, borrowings, fixed deposit, trade payables & other financial liabilities are considered to be same as
their fair value.

B. Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and liabilities that are measured at the fair value are grouped into three levels of fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the
observability of singificant inputs to the measurement. The categorises used are as follows:

Level 1: Measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or
indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

Level 3: Measured using inputs that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a
valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they
based on available market data.

The fair value of the financial assets are determined at the amount that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants.

32 Financial risk management
The Board of Directors oversee the Risk Management Framework and developing and meonitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The risk management
policies are established to ensure timely identification and evaluation of risks, setting acceptable risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls against these
risks, monitor the risks and their limits, improve risk awareness and transparency. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in the market conditions and the Company’s activities to provide reliable information to the Management and the Board to evaluate the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.

Below note explains the sources of the risks which the entity is exposed to and how the entity measures the associated risk and the related impact in the
financial statements:

Risk Exposure arising from M t
- Credit risk Cash and cash gqulvalent, other bank balances, trade receivables A eelgis
and other financial assets
- Market risk Variable rate borrowings Sensitivity analysis
- Liguidity risk Borrowings, Trade pavables and other financial liabilities Cash flow forecast

A  Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a
policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company's exposure and wherever
appropriate, the credit ratings-of its counterparties are continuously monitored and spread amongst various counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by
counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the management of the Company.

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits
Credit risk related to Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits is managed by only accepting highly rated banks.

Trade receivables
Credit risk related to trade receivables are managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continuously.

Other financial assets
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost includes Security deposits, Subsidy receivable, Interest accrued on fixed deposits, Taxes recoverable and
others. Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts continously.
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Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The Company does not
have any Financial Instruments affected by market risk hence no sensitivity analyses shown under this risk.

The Company does not have any exposure to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

Interest rate risk management
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk on the funds borrowed at floating interest rates:

- As at As at
R 31 Mar 2024 31 Mar 2023
Variable rate liabilities
Term loan from bank 16.929.60 -

v

Interest rate risk exposure

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Impact on Profit / (loss) for the year for a 50 basis point change:

Impact due to increase by 50 basis points 84.65 -
Impact due to decrease by 50 basis points (84.65) -

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company can not meet its financial obligations. The objective of liquidity risk management is to maintain sufficient
liquidity and to ensure funds are available for use as per the requirements.

The management monitors the Company's liquidity position and cash and cash equilvalents in the basis of expected cash flows. The Company’s objective is to
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of long term borrowings and trade payables etc. The Company has access to a
sufficient variety of sources of funding and debt.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Particulars Less than 1 1 to S years More than 5 years Total

year
As at 31 March 2024
Borrowings® 3,839.89 13,985.93 4,296.30 22,122.12
Preference shares - o 4,925.00 4,925.00
Trade payables 569.06 - - 569.06
Other financial liabilities 6.717.20 - o 6.717.20
Total 11,126.15 13,985.93 9,221.30 34,333.38
*including current maturities of non- current borrowings.
Particulars Less than 1 1to 5 years More than 5 years Total

year
As at 31 March 2023
Current Borrowings (ICD) 2,762.14 = ° 2,762.14
Trade payables 1,546.52 - o 1,546.52
Other financial liabilities 34.503.23 - ° 34.503.23
Total 38,811.89 = 2 38,811.89

Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through
efficient allocation of capital towards expansion of business, optimisation of working capital requirements and deployment of surplus funds into various
investment options.

The management of the Company reviews the capital structure of the Company on regular basis. As part of this review, the Board considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with the movement in the-working capital. —

The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided to total equity. Net debt includes, loans and borrowings less cash and cash

equivalents.

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Borrowing from banks 16,929.60 -

Other borrowings 2,686.73 2,762.14
Total debt 19,616.33 2,762.14
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 468.90 7.93
Net debt 19.147.43 2.754.21
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company 3.503.60 872.11
Net debt to equity ratio (Times) 5.47 3.16
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34 Employee benefits

[=TN

iii.

The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under:

Defined contribution and other plans

Contributions are made to the provident fund. The contributions are normally based upon a proportion of the employee’s salary. The Company has
recognized the following amounts in the Statement of profit and loss:

|Deseription | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 |
Emplover's contribution to provident fund* | 23.80 | 12.11 |
* included in contribution to provident & other funds under employee benefit expenses (refer note 23)

Defined benefit plans as per Ind AS-19: Employee benefits

Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan {unfunded). Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure
equivalent to 15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service.

These Plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as:

. Investment Risk: The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.
. Interest Risk: The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of

providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability.
Longevity risk : The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants
during employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

. Salary Risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future.

Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of
obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss and amount recognised in the
balance sheet:
i. Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Description 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 18.92 4.07
Net interest cost 0.53 -
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 19.46 4.07

ii. Amount recognised in other comprehensive income is as under:

Description 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial loss/(gain) recognised during the vear

- Change in financial assumptions 0.59 =
- Experience variance {i.e. actual experience vs assumptions) {0.81) -
Amount recognised in the other comprehensive income (0.21) =

iii. Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

Description 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the begining of the year 4.07 -
Current service cost 18.92 4.07
Interest cost 0.53 -
Change in financial assumptions 0.59 -
Experience variance (i.e. actual experience vs assumptions} {0.81) -
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 23.31 4.07
iv. Current/Non-current bifurcation

Description 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current benefit obligation 0.52 0.01
Non-current benefit obligation 22.79 4.06
Liability recognised in the balance sheet 23.31 4.07

v. Actuarial assumptions

Description 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Discount rate 7.37% 7.09%
Future basic salarv increase 8.00% 8.00%
Expected rate of return on plan assets Not applicable Not applicable]|
Mortality (% of IALM 12-14) ultimate 100.00% 100.00%
Normal retirement age 58 Years 58 Years
Attrition/withdrawal rate {per annum) 8.00% 8.00%

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, takes consideration of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

\: &____,, 1"—?/ "f
e
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Expected Cash Flow over the next (Valued on undiscounted basis) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 year 0.54 0.01
2 year 0.54 0.01
3 year 0.98 0.01
4 year 1.63 0.01
S year 4.67 0.01
6 to 10 vears 12.02 0.32
vii. Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability
Description 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Defined benefit oblisation {Base} 23.31 4.07
Impact of change in discount rate

- Discount rate increase by 100 basis points (2.01) {0.49)

- Discount rate decrease bv 100 basis points 2.34 0.58
Impact of change in salary increase rate

- Salary rate increase by 100 basis points 2.05 0.50

- Salarv rate decrease bv 100 basis points {1.92) 0.47)
Impact of change in withdrawl rate

- Salary rate increase by 100 basis points (0.52) =

- Salarv rate decrease by 100 basis points 0.53 -

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur
and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method has been applied which was applied while calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance

sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to prior periods.

Leave encashment and compensated absences (Unfunded)
The leave obligations covers the Company's liability for sick and earned leaves.

i. Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss is as under:

Description 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 12.54 0.72
Net interest cost 0.51 -
Experience variance {i.e. actual experience vs assumptions) 0.54 -
Amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 13.59 0.72
ii. Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet is as under:
Description 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the begining of the year 0.72 -
Current service cost 12.54 0.72
Net interest cost 0.51 -
Experience variance fi.e. actual experience vs assumptions) 0.54 -
| Benefits paid {0.09) -
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 14.22 0.72
iii. Current / Non-current bifurcation
Description 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current benefit obligation 1.45 0.07
Non - current benefit obligation 12.77 0.65
Liability recognised in the balance sheet 14.22 0.72
iv. Actuarial assumptions
Description 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate 7.09% 7.37%
Future salarv increase 8.00% 8.00%
- |Normal retirement age - 58 vears 58 vears|
Mortalitv (% of IALM 12-14) IALM (2012-14) Ultimate| IALM (2012-14) Ultimate
Attrition turnover/withdrawal rate 8.00% 8.00%

v. Sensitivity analysis

| Description

] 31 March 2024

31 March 2023 |

|Present Value of Obligation {Base)

| 14.22

0.72 |

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount factors are determined close to
each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related

obligation. Other assumptions are based on management’s historical experience.
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35 Related party disclosures

A. The list of related parties and description of relationships as identified by the management is as under:

Joint Venture Companies
JBM Auto Limited
Mr. Parminder Singh Chadha

Enterprises having significant influence
M/s Mind & Co.

Key managerial personnel ("KMP")

Mr. Sharad Gupta, Director

Mr. Krishan Kumar Gupta, Director

Mr. Bharat Bhushan Chawla, Director (w.e.f. 15 July 2023)

Mr. Neeraj Sharma, Manager (w.e.f. 15 July 2023)

Mr. Shatrughan Goswami, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 10.04.2023)

B. Details of transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business during the year :

Nature of transaction

Joint ventu

re Company

Total

31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Purchase of capital goods

JBM Auto Limited 456.21 25,193.24 456.21 25,193.24

Purchase of goods and services

JBM Auto Limited 1,380.97 857.46 1,380.97 857.46

Interest on Capital assets purchased:

JBM Auto Limited 444.78 2,075.94 444.78 2,075.94

Payment on behalf of the Company made by:

JBM Auto Limited 50.39 995.07 50.39 995.07

Equity share issued

JBM Auto Limited - 1,000.00 - 1,000.00

Preference shares issued:

JBM Auto Limited 1,947.69 - 1,947.69 -

Preference shares issued on conversion of Inter Corporate Loan:

JBM Auto Limited 2,934.14 - 2,934.14 -

Preference shares issued on conversion of Interest on Inter Corporate Loan:

JBM Auto Limited 43.17 - 43.17 -

Interest expense on 6% Non-Cumulative redeemable preference shares

JBM Auto Limited 215.04 - 215.04 -

Inter Corporate Loan taken: .

JBM Auto Limited 972.45 2,762.14 972.45 2,762.14

Inter Corporate Loan repaid:

JBM Auto Limited 800.45 - 800.45 -

Interest expense on Inter Corporate Loan

JBM Auto Limited 48.14 41.42 48.14 41.42
C. Balances with related parties:

. Joint venture Company Total
aaefofitransaction 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Inter corporate loan payable:

JBM Auto Limited - 2,762.14 - 2,762.14
Interest accrued on [iter corporate loan: i

JBM Auto Limited - 37.28 - 37.28
Bank guarantee given by :

JBM Auto Limited 927.55 927.55 927.55 927.55
Trade payables:

JBM Auto Limited 293.06 1,023.63 293.06 1,023.63
Borrowings- 6% Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares:

JBM Auto Limited 2,686.73 - 2,686.73 -
Payable for Capital expenditure including interest on capex:

JBM Auto Limited 6.668.65 34.438.48 6.668.65 34.438.48

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Qutstanding balances at the year-end are
unsecured. There have been no guarantees received or provided for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31 March 2024, the Company has
not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the
financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.
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36 Segment information
The Company is primarily engaged in the business of owning, operating and maintaining electric vehicles commercially and managing depots in India. Hence, no
separate segment disclosures as per Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments” have been presented. The said treatment is in accordance with guidance principles
enunciated in Ind AS 108 "Segment Reporting” as referred to in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015.

37 Auditor's Remuneration {excluding GST]

Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Statutory audit fees 2.00 2.36
Tax audit fees 0.42 -

38 Reconciliation between opening balances in the balance sheet after reclassification in the previous andited Financial statements:
As per the requirement of Para 41 of Ind AS-1 "Presentation of Financial Statements”, The Company has made reclassification of items appearing in the Balance
sheet for better presentation and appropriate classification wherever required as mentioned below:

Audited Reclassified Audited

Particulars E o Reclassification Financials Remarks

Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 22589.42 - 22589.43

Financial assets

(i} Other bank balance 221248 {2212.48) =

(if} Other financial asset 14.90 2212.48 2227.38 Other bank balances reclassified and

shown as other financial assets.

24816.80 - 24816.81

Current assets

Financial assets

(1) Trade receivables 6264.48 (107.30}) 6157.18 Provision for liquidated damages
reclassified from current provisions.

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7.93 - 7.93
(iii) Other current financial assets 7.50 - 7.50
Other current assets 9231.08 = 9231.07

15510.99 {107.30) 15403.68
Total Assets 40327.79 {107.30) 40220.49

Equity and liabilities

Equity
Equity share capital 1010.00 - 1010.00
Other equity (137.89) = {137.89)
872.11 - - 872.11
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions - 4.72 4.72 Provision for employee  benefits
reclassified from  other financial
liablities.
Deferred tax liability {net) 82.92 - 82.93
82.92 4.72 87.65
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings 2762.14 - 2762.14
(ii) Trade payables
Total Qutstanding Dues to Micro and Small 66.08 = 66.08
Enterprises ‘
Total Qutstanding Dues of Creditors other than 3348.79 (1868.35) 1480.44 Interest accrued and due on capex
Micro and Small Enterprises reclassified to Other current financial
liabilities.
(iii) Other current financial liabilities 32639.67 1863.56 34503.23
Other current liabilities 249.35 - 249.35
Provisions - 306.73 {107.23) 199.50 Provision for employee  benefits

reclassified from  other financial
liablities and liquidated damaged to
Trade receivables.
39372.76 (112.02) 39260.73
Total Equity and Liabilities 40327.79 {107.30) 40220.49
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39 Reconciliation between opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for financial liabilities arising from financing activities:

The amendments to the Ind-AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows requires the entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the disclosure requirement.

40

The required disclosure is made below:

Borrowings including current

Easticulys maturities
Opening balance as on 1 April 2022 °
Add : Cash inflow during the year -
Proceeds from current borrowings (net) 2,762.14
Less : Cash outflow during the year -
Repayment of borrowings =
Closing balance as on 31 March 2023 2,762.14
Add : Non cash changes due to -
Interest expenses 215.04
Add : Cash inflow during the year -
Proceeds from non-current borrowings 18,929.70
Proceeds from Compound financial instruments 2,471.69
Less : Cash outflow during the year -
Repayment of borrowings {4762.24)
Closing balance as on 31 March 2024 19,616.33

Accounting ratios
As at As at
Ratio Numerator Denominator UOoM 31 March | 31 March | Variance Reason for Variance
2024 2023
Current Ratio Totall Cusrent Assets || L oL Surrent in times 0.73 0.39 ey | Py 6 ol Grastions e (31 G
Liabilities decrease in current liabilities.
Total Debt (Non- .
Tel loan taken from Bank during the year
g . current borrowings + . . ) & HS Y
Debt Equity Ratio P t Bo N il Total Equity in times 5.60 3.17 77%|ended 31 March 2024 has led to the increase
urrent Borrowings in rati.
Total Lease Liability)
Earnings available for
Debt Service Debt Service
Debt Service Coverage Net Profit after Taxes +|Interest & Lease Term loan taken from Bank during the year
Ratio & Non -cash operating|Payments +| in times 1.34 2.18 -39%]|ended 31 March 2024 has led to the decrease
expenses + Interest +|Principal in ratio.
Other Non-cash|Repayments
Adiustments
Profit for the year less | .
. L. .~ |Average Total <o o =i o, |PTOfit earned during the year has led to
Return on Equity Slevf‘erence dividend (if sy in % 36.36%| -31.15% -217% L s i e e
Inventory Turnover Ratio Not Applicable
i Improved collection efficiency has led to the
‘llzili(rixfniic}z:taisles gi:;?;:iir?som QZ;??:bE:de i e 252 2 2y incirase in turnover ratio CY
Tra?e YIS M| UGS Bl EEatess) (i | Pemags TRl in times 2.43 2.26 7%|Not Applicable, refer note below.
Ratio Other Expenses Pavables
Average Working
. Capital Increase in revenue and Decrease in working
Net_Capxtal L) Revem{e (sersn {Current Assets -| in times -0.79 -0.40 98%|capital due to repayments has led to the
et Cpremitne Current increase
Liabilities)
q Revenue from 6 O o Not Not g
d . X Not Applicable
Net Profit Ratio Net Profit (After Tax) Operations in % 7.62% Applicable | Applicable PP
Capital
Employed
Return on Capital Profit before tax and  |Net Worth + <o . - o, |Increase in Debt due to fresh term loan has
Employed finance costs Total Debt + inke 1324504 46.29% % led to the decline
Deferred Tax
Liabilities

Return on investment
ratio

Not Applicable

Note : Reason for variance in the ratios are required to be furnised when variance is more than 25%.
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41 Other Regulatory Informations

=

The Company has not granted Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related parties (as defined under
Companies Act, 2013}, either severally or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.

The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks or {financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts,

The Company has not been declared as a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution {as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or consortium thereof
or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on willful defaulters issued by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956
during the financial year.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with The Registrar of Companies (ROC) beyond the statutory period.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or anv other sources or kind of funds) to any other
person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide anv guarantee. security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
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